Public Document
Pack
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S
TRUST BOARD
AGENDA
Tuesday, 16 July 2013 commencing at 9.00 am
Professional Excellence Centre, Acre Lane, Bromborough
1.

09:00 APOLOGIES AND INTRODUCTIONS

2.

09:00 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3.

09:05 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING (Pages 1 - 6)

4.

09:10 IFIP (Pages 7 - 8)

5.

09:30 SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC WELLBEING ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 9 - 22)

6.

09:50 SAFEGUARDING BOARD UPDATE (Pages 23 - 30)

7.

10:05 LINK FORUM ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 31 - 38)

8.

10:25 CHILD POVERTY
10:55 BREAK

9.

10:50 REVIEW OF 5 - 19 HEALTHY CHILD PROGRAMME (Pages 39 - 44)

10.

11:10 HELP SURVEY 2013 (Pages 45 - 50)

11.

11:30 CYPP PERFORMANCE MONITORING

12.

11:45 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Date and time of future meetings:
24 September 2013

18 March 2014

19 November 2013

20 May 2014

21 January 2014

17 July 2014

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda
Item
3
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S
TRUST
BOARD

1161

MINUTES
Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 21st May 2013

Present: Cllr T Smith (Chair), Cllr W Clements, J Hassall, J Webster, V McGee, P Riding, J
Martin, S Patterson, G Batchelor, L Loughran, B Morgan, M Kilcoyne, S Dainty, G
Robinson, K Podmore, R Longster, D Charlton.
In Attendance: Tracy Little (Minutes), Caroline McKenna
161

09:00 APOLOGIES AND INTRODUCTIONS

162

09:00 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

163

09:05 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

164

09:10 BEING HEALTHY STRATEGY GROUP ANNUAL UPDATE

Julie Graham presented her annual report from the Being Healthy Strategy Group.
Julie noted that the new priorities area for the delivering the Healthy Child Programme, this
is spit into two age groups:
•
From conception to age five
•
5 to 19
Julie commented that the Being Healthy Group are reviewing their membership and have
noted there needs to be better representation from the 3rd sector and partners other than
those Health.
Key achievement for the group include:
All Wirral Children’s Homes have healthy homes status.
Excellent reduction in the teenage conception rates.
Peer education programme for drugs and alcohol and teenage pregnancy.
98% coverage for National Child Measurement Programme which compares
well to benchmark groups.
• Positive effect from the 1:1 interventions and working well.
•
•
•
•

Key issues for 2013/14
• Steady reduction in alcohol admissions has been identified. There is more
evidence to support the need for schools drugs advisor.
• Emergency 0-4 admissions (deliberate and unintentional injuries). A study has
been conducted to explore some of the issues for families.

Page 1
Page 1

• Take up of child weight services isn’t as well as expected.
• Breastfeeding initiation rates are not improving as well as expected. A milk bank
has now been established.
• Locally, the MMR immunisation rates are very good with provision in GP
surgeries.
Plans are in place to look at feasibility of extending school nursing service wider than term
time and school time only.
• Work is underway to establish a pathway from Breastfeeding to Bariatric Surgery
to support work around obesity and weight management.
Partnership Involvements include:
•
•
•
•
•

Breastfeeding initiation rate.
TP support continues.
Links between Children’s Trust and Wirral CCG.
Do all organisations feed into the JSNA?
Cultural awareness training will be re-commissioned in 2013/14.

Councillor Wendy Clements asked for clarifications on the breastfeeding to bariatric
surgery. Julie noted that the clear link between breastfeeding and adult obesity and it was
an opportunity to map out a health eating pathway for the journey of an individual’s life.
Mary Kilcoyne noted to the Board that she will take back the request for 3rd sector
involvement.
Julia asked how Partners can help within this area. Julie noted the feasibility of the school
drug advisor and a teenage pregnancy co-ordinator.
Julie Webster noted the importance of joint planning across Public Health and how this
needs to work.
Gary Price noted that this great work has been undertaken under a time of significant
change for the Health Services and Public Health in particular.
Tracy Little updated that the Wirral CCG have been invited to have representation on the
WCTB. Julie Webster noted this was a good start and links were required at all levels.
Julia Hassall noted that a key driver working together would come from the work under the
Early Preventative Services and Intensive Family Intervention Project.
Cllr Smith asked for clarification around the immunisation service commissioned from NHS
England. Julie Webster noted the importance of ensuring the large footprint commissions
works well at a local level.
Cllr Smith asked for clarification on services available to support Children and Young
People with their mental health. Julie clarified that the Promoting Positive Mental Health in
Schools Group (PPMHSG) group is going from strength to strength. Julie outlined there
are counselling services available through the Response team and also the Kooth.com.
Steve Dainty, who sits on the PPMHSG noted the impact that this group has in linking
CAMHS, Education Psychology Service (EPS) and schools.

Page 2
2

165

09:40 CHILDREN'S IMPROVEMENT BOARD

Julia Hassall gave a presentation around the work Wirral have undertaken with the
Children’s Improvement Board. Julia added that although the national funding has ceased
the work regionally will continue as long as possible.
Dennis Chorlton commented this was a comprehensive and balanced evaluation. He
commented that there was a lot of media attention recently, especially issues around
sexual exploitation of children. Dennis added that all partners need to ensure that they are
clear around safeguarding children.
Julie Webster added that information/experience on joint planning would be of great
benefit.
Cllr Smith asked how Academies fit with Children’s Services and safeguarding children.
Steve Dainty commented that all Academies have bought in to the Education Quality
Safeguarding training. Dennis added that the new working together guidance place a duty
to co-operate on Academies.
RESOLVED: The Board note the report.
Cllr Smith thanked Julia and Colleagues for their work in this area.
166

10:05 COMMISSIONING UPDATE

Janice Monty gave an overview on the commissioning process for 2012/13. She outlined
the process undertaken and also the lessons learned for the next commissioning round.
Cllr Clements noted her agreement that commissioned contracts are currentlt too short.
Gary Price commented that this evaluation was comprehensive; he also noted that the
contracts are to short. He added as a commissioned service the Chest is an excellent tool.
Julie Graham noted that Public Health have commissioned services which have been joint
ventures between small and larger organisations.
Janice reiterated the importance of the evaluation process.
Mary Kilcoyne noted that as one of the services bidding in the commissioning process that
the evaluation does ensure that the process gets better every cycle. She added that the
relationship between commissioners and commissioned is strong and helps drive this
improvement.
RESOLVED: The Board note the report.

167

10:35 CHILD POVERTY

Cllr Smith updated on the City Region Child Poverty Group. Cllr Smith noted that the work
at the last meeting was looking at narrowing the gap across the key stages. He added that
the group is growing and collating regional information around issues affecting children.

Page 3
3

Julia updated that the Springboard Project is well underway, working with children from
conception to aged 5. A project manager, Zoe Mumby, is now in post.
The Child Poverty Working group are looking at the impact of the welfare reform, One Stop
Shops, Christian against Poverty and Job Centre Plus. A following meeting focussed on
the journey from poverty to being in work. Julia added that the use of ‘Direct Key Worker’
was centre to improving outcomes for job seekers.
The use of community assets will be the focus of the next project.
RESOLVED: The Board note the report.
168

10:50 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN 2013/16

Tracy Little outline the final version of the Children and Young People’s Plan 2013 – 16.
The plan has been developed through the Strategy Groups and pulls together 11 priorities
that the Children’s Trust will deliver for Children, Young People and their families over the
next three years.
The 11 priorities are:
Priority 1: From conception to age five Wirral Children have the best possible physical,
social, emotional and psychological start in life.
Priority 2: From 5 - 19 years, Wirral children and young people’s health and well being will
continue to develop through healthy lifestyle choices in preparation for adult life.
Priority 3: To support those children and young people who require extra help at the earliest
opportunity.
Priority 4: To improve outcomes for children and young people in need of protection.
Priority 5: To improve outcomes for Children in Care and Care Leavers.
Priorities 6: To ensure that there is appropriate support and challenge to educational
settings.
Priority 7: To ensure children and young people across Wirral will have improved
attainment levels and skills, to enable then to fulfil their aspirations.
Priority 8: Effectively promote and enable participation and progression for all young
people.
Priority 9: Improve the educational outcomes for vulnerable children and young people.
Priority 10: Improve provision, choice and outcomes for children and young people with
Special Educational Needs and/or Disabilities.
Priority11: Enhance the involvement of children and young people in the decision making
process.
The Plan will now be published and displayed on the Children’s Trust Website.

Resolved: The Board endorse the Children and Young People’s Plan 2013-16.

Page 4
4

169

11:10 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT OF THE CYPP 2013/16

Tracy Little presented the draft Equality Impact Assessment for the Children and Young
People’s Plan 2013-16.
The report notes that Wirral Children’s Trust has a commitment to contributing to a fairer
society by ensuring that unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation is eliminated,
equality of opportunity is advanced and good relations are fostered between different
groups. It also understands its specific equality duties under the Equality Act to analyse the
effect of policies and practices and how they further the equality aims and to publish the
results of that analysis which includes the information used and the engagement that took
place.
It has therefore undertaken an equality impact assessment of the Children and Young
People’s Plan for 2013-16 focusing on the impact of the priorities of the plan on people from
protected groups. An assumption has been made that the lead organisation for delivery of the
individual projects will undertake their own equality impact assessments.
Tracy made reference to the Wirral Children’s Service Equality Pledge which has been
developed by working with children and young people. It was proposed that the Children’s Trust
adopt this equality pledge with reference to the delivery of the Children and Young People’s
Plan and also the wider Partnership.
Resolved: The Board endorse the Equality Impact Assessment and also the Wirral Children's
Services Equality Pledge.

170

11:20 ELECTION OF CHAIRS FOR OUTCOME GROUPS

Tracy Little outlines that as a result of the changes to the Children’s Trust structure,
outlined in the Children and Young People’s Plan 2013/16. The Children’s Trust Executive
would like to take this opportunity to forge stronger links between themselves and the
Children’s Trust Board. The Executive proposed that the three revised strategy groups are
chaired by a member of the Children’s Trust Board.
This proposal came from the need to strengthen links and also to ensure that
communication channels were improved. The strategy leads will remain responsible for
driving the delivery of the Children and Young People’s Plan at an operational level and the
Chair will keep strategic oversight and linkage with the wider Trust Board.
There would be a requirement for three Chairs, one for each of the new Strategy Groups.
The Chairs role included attending meetings and maintaining the strategic links to the wider
Trust Board. The Strategy Lead will ensure that meeting papers are provided and that the
Chair is brought up to speed with current or emerging issues for the group.
Julie Webster will take Chair for the Being Healthy group.
Resolved: The Board endorse the Chair roles and request volunteers for nomination for
the Staying Safe and the Achieving and Economic Wellbeing strategy groups.
11:30
SUMMARY
171

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN 2012/13 PERFORMANCE

Page 5
5

Tracy Little gave a presentation on the year end performance of the Children and Young
People’s Plan 2012-13.
Highlights for last year include:
•
•

The gap for KS4 is reducing faster than that of statistical neighbours
Teenage conceptions continue to fall

Resolved: The Board noted the report.

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETINGS
24 September 2013

18 March 2014

19 November 2013

20 May 2014

21 January 2014

17 July 2014

Page 6
6

WHAT WE’RE DOING DIFFERENTLY & HOW WE’RE DOING IT
Resources

Processes

Page 7
Values

Troubled Families
→
● Partnership secondees- Police, MFRS, Health,
CNXS, JC+
● Working differently with VCF sector- Catch 22,
Home-Start, FIP and Family Role Models
● Joint initiatives- Family Group Conferencing with
Probation and DAAT, community events and home
safety checks with MRFS for vulnerable families
● Using existing resources more effectively- RPA 1419 Project, ESF Working Families, ReachOut, Adult
Learning
● Sustainability built into the model
● FIP model- 1 Key Worker, 1 assessment, 1 plan,
phased approach
● Improved use of collective intelligence
● Partner nominations
● Multi-agency Strategy for Sanctions
● Bespoke database
● All case management, for both LA and partners on
same system

● Standardising the delivery model
● Implementing systems for review and
management oversight
● Improved performance monitoring systems
● Improved involvement of children and
families- through groups and Family Role
Models
● Families moving between Targeted and
Specialist Services experience a smooth
transition
● Promoting accountability in all aspects of the
service
● Providing a dynamic and flexible service which
promotes resilience and independence
● Professional value and development
● Timely and effective response to needs
● Evidence based and outcome focused

Outcomes
● Streamlined CYPD working
● Mutual priorities and pooled budgets
● Capacity within localities extended through
partnership work
● Demonstrable savings through cost benefit
analysis
● Skilled and motivated workforce
● A sustainable model with capacity for growth
● Children and families receive consistent and
co-ordinated interventions which are quality
assured
●Balance scorecard which measures impact in
terms of experience and outcomes as well as
processes
● Procedures and IT systems shared across the
partnership
● Children and families receive the help they
need at the earliest stage- suppressing demand for
Specialist Services
● Simplified processes and removing duplication
reduces costs
● Change in culture from dependence to
resilience
● Better outcomes for children and families
which can be evidenced
● All staff accountable to ensure value for money
● A professional and dynamic service with
regional/national recognition

Agenda Item 4

● Shared responsibility and shared vision- IFIP Board
and Stakeholder Group
● Payment by Results- outcome focused
● Challenge
● Creating resilience
● ‘Think Family’ approach

Family Support Service
→
●Reconfiguring the service- FSWs, FSTLs and
locality working
● Investing in core competencies of staff
● Realigning services to make a core offer which
includes: Family Intervention; Support Groups;
Parenting; and Family Group Conferencing

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

Agenda Item 5
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 16th July 2013
ACHIEVING ECONOMIC WELLBEING STRATEGY GROUP ANNUAL REPORT

Introduction
The Economic Well Being outcome area within Wirral’s Children and Young People’s plan aims to
increase the number of young people achieving social and economic well being through the
following priority areas:
•

•
•
•

Ensure that all young people aged 16-18 particularly those in vulnerable groups are
effectively supported to access the education, employment and training opportunities
available.
Minimise the impact of poverty on children.
Support vulnerable young people and children with additional housing needs to access
suitable housing options.
Ensure that our young people have excellent skills and opportunities in to employment,
including through Wirral’s Apprenticeship programme.

The Economic Well Being Strategy Group, from September 2011, has been chaired by Vivian
Stafford, Strategic Service Manager. In November 2011 the group went through a thorough review
of it role and responsibilities, whilst also subsuming relevant activity from the disbanded 14-19
Partnership. Current membership is drawn from multi-agency representation relating to these
priority areas and key representatives who can make a difference in this outcome area from across
the Children’s Trust. Meetings are held every 6 weeks and an annual programme of work for each
meeting has been agreed. The Strategy Group is closely aligned with the 14-19 team.
One of the main functions of the Economic Well Being group is to monitor and report on the
progress in this element of the Children and Young People’s plan relating particularly to the
National Indicators, 14-19 Raising of the Participation Age Plan (RPA) and any other areas of
focus agreed by the Partnership. Other functions of the group include:
•
•
•
•

The co-ordination of activities relating to the priority areas to ensure synergy.
To respond to requests for information or action such as the Equality Impact Assessment.
To provide information to other groups across the Trust including the Children and Young
People’s Dept.
To seek effective arrangements to consult with children and young people, to act on the
results and to provide feedback.

Impact of activity on performance indicators 1st April 2012 to 31st March 2013
PI
No.

Title

2010
Actual

2011
Actual

2012 Direction
Actual of Travel

NI
79

Achievement of a Level 2
qualification by the age of
19

77.7%

81.9%

85.9%

NI
80

Achievement of a Level 3
qualification by the age of
19

50.5%

53.4%

55.8%

NI
81

Inequality gap in the
achievement of a Level 3
qualification by the age of
19

36%

36%

34%

Page 9

1

NI
82

Achievement of a Level 2
qualification by the age of
19 by FSM Group

60%

67%

NI
91

Participation of 17 yearolds in education or
training

85%
(2009)

92%
(2010)

16 to 18 year olds who are
NI not in education,
8.6%
117 employment or training
(NEET)

8.9%

NI Care leavers in education,
54.2%
148 employment or training

39.0%

Key recent
achievements

71%

7.5%

48.0%

Targeted NEET reduction activity
Commissioning of Targeted Information, Advice and Guidance
Service
The Education Act 2011 changes the duties on delivering information,
advice and guidance (IAG) to young people. Primary responsibility now
rests with schools and academies to provide provision of careers
education, information, advice and guidance to their young people in years
9 to 11. Wirral Council retains it statutory duty to encourage, enable or
assist young people’s participation in education or training.
The Council commissioned Greater Merseyside Connexions Partnership
to deliver a targeted IAG service to support the engagement of vulnerable
young people aged 16-19 NEET, at risk of disengagement and those
young people with a learning difficulties or disabilities (up to the age of 25
if subject to a learning difficulty disability assessment).
The service has aligned to the Council Services Access Strategy. Access
for young people to the service has therefore be more localised.
Connexions personal advisors have provided services from selected
Council ‘One Stop Shops’, Libraries, Youth Hubs and Area Team Offices
as well as providing a peripatetic service out in the community.
An interactive web portal was also launched (www.merseyinteractive.com)
on 1st April 2012, which acts as a free online resource detailing all
learning, employment and training options available to young people
across Wirral. The system is accessed by young people, parents / carers
and teaching professionals. The portal brings high quality information and
tools to support career based decision making for young people in an easy
to use interactive way.
The system is currently being overhauled for September 2013 and will
have such new features as; a focus on selected City Region
Transformational Sectors (for Wirral this will be high value manufacturing)
and their job opportunities, a news feed section, social media site, 360
degree multimedia employer tours etc…
Mersey Interactive is also pivotal to the delivery of the 14-19 Information,
Advice and Guidance traded service to Wirral secondary schools. To date
25 schools have requested access to and been training in the use of
Mersey Interactive and U-Explore. In additional, 3622 young people in

Page 10

2

Wirral schools are actively using U-Explore to inform careers decisions
and this number is increasing daily.
Youth Contract
Nationally, in 2012 the Government announced it was administering a
number of new initiatives under the DWP ‘Youth Contract’ programme. In
response to the challenge of youth unemployment the Government
announced a £1billion Youth Contract to help young unemployed people
get a job. The Youth Contract, which launched in April 2012, providing
nearly half-a-million new opportunities for 16-24 years olds, including
apprenticeships and work experience placements. As part of the Youth
Contract the National Apprenticeship Service (NAS) is currently offering
small to medium sized employer’s financial incentives to take on young
people either directly or from the work programme.
Role out of key Youth Contract initiatives locally has been slow. The 14-19
Team has been working with Groundwork UK (contractor) and
Groundwork Cheshire (service provider) to establish the mentoring
support programme for young people. This is an additional service to that
of targeted careers information, advice and guidance commissioned by
the Local Authority (LA) and delivered by Greater Merseyside Connexions
Partnership.
Eligible young people are those aged 16 and 17 with up to one GCSE at
grades A*-C. New groups of young now eligible for the provision include
Looked After Children and Young Offenders aged 16 and 17.
The roll out of the programme has been extremely slow locally and across
the Liverpool City Region (LCR). As of the 31st June 2013 48 16 to 17 year
old young people have been engaged by the service.
European Social Funded Provision
New Futures is a flexible, engaging and supportive programme for Wirral
young people who are not in education, employment and training (NEET)
– or at risk of becoming NEET who reside within the borough. The
programme has being delivered through a consortium of voluntary,
community and faith organisations across the borough.
The programme combines high levels of individual support with engaging
and inspiring practical activities and incentives to achieve key milestones
and progression. New Futures is essentially a pre Foundation Learning
type programme. The focus is on supporting the young people to take
control of their own lives, develop positive attitudes towards ambition,
achievement, learning and work, and to work on building their confidence
and self-esteem.
As of the 31st June 2013 393 16 to 18 year old young people have been
engaged and started on the provision.
Get Involved Programme
This programme is Council funded aimed at young people aged 16 and
17, currently not in employment, education or training, who have an
interest in progressing on to an Apprenticeship or further learning in
September 2012. Between June 2012 and March 2013 the programme the
programme engaged 49 young people. Analysis of the first two cohorts
illustrated a 73% sustained positive progression rate (19 YP) in to
Employment, Education and / or Training.

Page 11

3

The programme has assisted those young people who have engaged the
opportunity to develop their employability skills and attributes. These skills
have been gained through the opportunity to gain real work experience
with a quality voluntary, community and / faith organisation.
As at the 1st June 2013 there were 42 opportunities available for young
people aged 16 and 17 NEET to start on this provision.
DWP New Horizons Programme

Greater Merseyside Connexions Partnership (GMCP) has started
the recruitment of around 4,000 young people to take part in the
Triodos New Horizons programme. The scheme is helping young
people in Merseyside, many of whom are young offenders, have
learning disabilities, or are in or leaving care.
Programme headlines are as follows:
•

Equipping vulnerable
young people to make and sustain successful key transitions

•

Delivered within GMCP’s established service footprint of Greater
Merseyside

•

Targeting those groups of young people who are NEET or most
likely to become of be NEET with the following vulnerabilities:

•
•
•

Those in care or leaving care
Young offenders
LLDD

•

Developing individual ‘stickability’ or resilience using Mental
Toughness

•

A family/carer centric approach

•

Raising of aspirations

•

Exposure to the world of work

•

‘End to end’ programme including employment opportunities

Beneficiaries of the New Horizons programme will have the aim of
achieving one or more of the following •

Improved attendance at school

•

Improved behaviour at school

•

Achieve 1st NQF Level 1

•

Successful entry into 1st employment -13 weeks

•

Successful entry to employment -26 weeks

Year to date 134 key stage 4 Wirral young people have been engaged on
the programme from across 10 schools / academies. The first NQF level 1
conversion is 11% or 15 young people out the 134 participants. Ten young
people have now achieved the 13 weeks in employment against a target
of 15.

Page 12

4

Looked After Children Participation Model (14-19 LAC Employability
Team)
The 14-19 Team LAC employability service has two dimensions. The first
dimension is to aid progression for LAC who were in full time education
(year 9 to 13) in schools / academies. The second dimension is a
programme aimed at supporting care leavers aged 16 – 19 years who
have left education and are Not in Education Employment or Training
(NEET). The aim of the programme is to raise achievement and
attainment rates by aiding progression into employment, education and /
or training (EET) through direct intervention and opportunities promotion.
Support Programme for LAC in Full-Time Education
In 2012, a total of 69 LAC received support from the programme. A
majority of schools in Wirral have engaged well with the programme. Out
of the 14 mainstream secondary schools that were targeted in Wirral, 13
schools have successfully engaged with the programme. Learners have
also been supported at the two FE colleges.
The initial results of the programme show that 91.7% of year 11 LAC
progressed onto a positive post 16 destination, 41 learners received
academic mentoring in order to raise attainment, numerous visits were
arranged for LAC to experience post 16 providers across Merseyside and
3 Care Leavers progressed into Higher Education.
Post-16 Care Leaver Support Programme
The Care Leaver Support Programme has two key dimensions:1. Ongoing 1:1 support from a personal coach, motivational programmes,
provision of Information, Advice and Guidance and bespoke college
courses.
2. NEET Participation Model which includes:• An 8 week programme. This included confidence building,
raising aspirations and self-esteem, team work, leadership
skills etc.
• A short in house preparation for work programme,

•

application forms, interview techniques, local labour
market info etc.
An 8 week paid internship with the Council or private
employer.

In 2012 70% of participants who made it to the internship progressed in to
EET. The 2013 programme is currently still being evaluated.
The LAC Employability have been working toward a LAC EET at 19 target
of 63% for the 2012/13 and have therefore been focused on engaging
those who are turning 19 after April 2012.
As at April 2012 the Team had successfully progresses 48% LAC at their
19th birthday in to EET. Un-validated data for April 2013 indicates that
some 58% of LAC at age 19 (NI 148) were in some form of EET at the
time of their 19th birthday.
Recent developments include the availability of Youth Contract (YC)
support for NEET Care Leavers aged 16 and 17 through the Youth
Contract programme. This has been available since May 2013 and the 1419 Team have worked closely with the YC providers to map services to
ensure no duplication and maximum impact.

Page 13

5

2012 Summer Transition Programme
The 2012 programme received 47 referrals from schools and was
designed with the following intended outcomes:





Learners with a clear destination plan
Personal up-to-date CV
Enhanced employability skills
Positive move-on
Reduced Post 16 NEET (October/November)

Participants were offered personalised taster sessions with Wirral
Learning Provider Network affiliated providers, work towards accrediated
qualifications and the opportunity to attend a residential at the Oaklands
Outdoor Education Centre.
Of the 47 referrals 66% (31 young people) attended one or more taster
days at a training provider. A full evaluation was completed and individual
young people were tracked during the Autumn term. Overall 74% (23
young people) of the 2012 transition programme participants progressed
in to some form of employment, education and or training. Eight young
people had been picked up by Connexions as NEET.
Learners with learning difficulties and disabilities
The numbers of high tariff young people SEN / LDD entering local further
education opportunities has increased from 20 in 2009/10 to 62 in 2011/12
and 71 in 2012/13. For 2013/14 the local FE Colleges are forecasting 101
HNS. This is in part due to the excellent relationships that have developed
between the local authority, local schools and the FE Colleges. Also,
investments made by both colleges have significantly improved the quality
of the available provision for LLDD learners.
Due to the improvement in the quality of local FE provision learners with
learning difficulties are more likely to remain in the borough.
Consequently, this has resulted in a reduction of out of area numbers from
ten in 2009/10 to four in 2011/12. Five learners are accessing Independent
Specialist Provider (ISP) in 2012/13. Currently, we have approved one
application for a place in 2013/14.
For the fifth year the Council ran the ‘Your Future Your Choice’
conference for young people with learning difficulties and disabilities. The
event brings together the young people, their families and their teachers
with a range of providers, both voluntary and statutory; in order that the
young people could be fully informed of the options available to them post
16 and, therefore, make informed choices for their future.
In 2009, 350 people attended the event but in 2012, nearly 800 people
attended. Further evaluation by the deliverer has also indicated the value
of the event with learners, parents and carers gaining valuable information
about transition to adulthood.
The Local Authority has a key challenge this year as from April 2013
government funding reforms means that each LA has become responsible
for managing new arrangements for funding educational provision for
pupils and students with high needs SEN.
The government has defined high needs pupils and students as those who

Page 14

6

need educational provision that costs more than £10,000 in total. The
£10,000 includes the cost of basic provision given to all pupils and
students added to up to £6,000 that settings may provide from their
notional SEN budget for a pupil. The £10,000 threshold is set nationally
as the level that the Government expect to be met through mainstream
funding and is equivalent to the cost of a place in specialist SEN provision.
Pupils and students with high needs include those :
• aged 0-19 with high level special educational needs (SEN)
aged 16-25 with high level learning or disabilities (LDD) including those
aged 19-25 who are subject to a learning difficulty assessment (LDA).
Minority Ethnic Achievement Service

The Service has supported schools and settings by offering advice
and support for on meeting the needs of EAL/BME pupils, and
training and supporting school staff for example in Collaborative
learning and speaking and listening for EAL. Training has been
offered in schools, centrally and through EAL Primary and
Secondary support networks by the MEAS team with partners from
EAL HUB schools who share good practice. Training has extended
to include important current areas like race and cultural awareness
and Equalities training. Feedback on MEAS training and support is
very positive. 99% of people attending MEAS training sessions
thought they were Good or Better. The team has also promoted
celebrating diversity in schools across Wirral through activities like
Tales in Tents events and collaboration with partners to run cultural
events to engage different communities and training and support for
bilingual volunteers. 100% of school staff supported by MEAS
agreed that this support had a positive impact on their work with
EAL pupils.
Lifelong and Family Learning Service

In 2012-13 the service has concentrated on developing adult and
family learning opportunities around the priorities identified by the
Wirral Adult and Community Learning Partnership. This included
identifying and supporting vulnerable groups and people affected
by changes in benefits, widening participation, supporting families
and parents to help them support children and young people’s
needs and encouraging volunteers in adult learning. Through very
strong partnership working the service has reached new vulnerable
learners, whilst maintaining support for those adults and families
who are keen to develop their opportunities through learning.
Family Learning continues to work in partnership with schools
(primary, secondary and special), children’s centres, libraries and
community groups. In Lifelong Learning good links have supported
parents to engage in learning to move them towards employment.
There are increases in mental health needs and poverty related
stress. Literacy and numeracy, ESOL and IT Skills for Work, support
people with low skills, unemployed and in low paid employment and
are run in learning centres, libraries, schools and community
venues. 1:1 literacy for adults with volunteer buddies has supported
working age people with very basic skills to develop their skills eg

Page 15

7

referred from JCP and A4E, including people on probation. The
service supports local people to help one another and to move out
of poverty. Mentoring, volunteering and confidence building have
given people to skills to support other local families experiencing
problems.

Skills and Economic Development Activity
Wirral Apprentice Programme
In 2009 the Council recognised that the impact of the then economic
downturn was starting to have on the availability of apprenticeship places
in the borough. Whilst demand for places from young people continued to
be high, it was found that employers were finding it increasingly difficult to
support the business case for employing apprentices and have access to
a growing available ‘job ready’ labour supply.
Based on this evidence, the Council developed The Wirral Apprentice
which was initially funded by £1.7m of Working Neighbourhoods Funds for
the creation of 100 apprenticeship places. The early programme offered
an 18 month wage subsidy from an expected minimum of a 2 year
employment contract. The Wirral Apprenticeship Programme (WAP) has
since April 2009 supported 427 Apprenticeship opportunities for Wirral
young people and adults.
The evaluation of the first two rounds illustrated that a significant number
of Wirral SMEs have benefited from the WAP. This is demonstrated
through the fact that 54 employers (40% of all employer engaged) have
been able to recruit an appropriate Apprentice and sustain the new job
roles created beyond the Council wage subsidy period.
Year to date evidence is suggesting that the benefits to Wirral young
people aged 16 to 24 have also been good with a significant number of
Apprentices achieving a full framework outcome and some progressing on
to a higher level Apprenticeship.
The vast majority of Apprenticeships offered by employers during rounds
one and two were level 2 (intermediate) Apprenticeships. The approach
taken with the fourth round of the WAP has been positive in terms of
focusing on a balance of level 2 and level 3 opportunities.
The 14-19 Team are currently working on a revised specification for the
fifth round of the Wirral Apprenticeship Programme due to significantly
reduced employer grant. This programme will go live in July 2013 offering
subsidies to employers to support up to a further 58 NEET young people
or unemployed adults access to an Apprenticeship.

Improving Post 16 Education Standards
Post 16 attainment
16-18 success rates have improved. The 2011/12 Wirral 16-18 FE
success rate performance illustrates a performance improvement over the
last three academic years.
IN previous years significant quality improvement work has been
undertaken to improve post 16 with a focus on level 3 attainment:

Page 16

8

•

•

•
•

Additional funding made available, through the Council school
improvement budget, to assist those schools with declining 2011
key stage 5 outcomes.
Practical support via the heads of 6th Form network has been
provided, for example, – observation of teaching and learning
materials, teaching standards materials etc…
Additional activity with School Improvement Partners to work with
schools to plan strategies to drive up standards.
Post 16 Provider Dialogue process

Funding was made available during 2012/13 to support in narrowing the
level 3 attainment gap by age 19 for those young people previously free
school meals eligible in their final year of level 3 programmes. The funding
was strategically targeted towards six secondary schools and the two
Further Education College’s. This approach was taken for a number of
reasons:• proportions of Free School Meal (FSM) young people
• historical attainment gaps
• scale and numbers of young people recruited
• access to level 3 learners
• significant proportions of young people attending FE provision from
economically deprived wards
Approaches taken to address individual learner barriers by institutions,
supported by the 14-19 Team, included:1. Travel assistance
2. Learning mentor support
3. Equipment / uniforms
4. Laptop for young person with caring responsibilities
5. Support for HE application
6. Motivation / confidence building workshops
A total of 110 named young people have been supported by the
programme during 2012/13.
To date the Colleges and Schools have provided some very positive
feedback including high retention rates (+90%) and early achievements /
positive progressions.
NI 81 Inequality gap in Level 3 qualification attainment by the age of 19
has reduced for the first time in three years by 2% to 34%.
Housing and Accommodation for LAC
A gateway protocol was launched in August 2012 in response to the
House of Lords judgement of May 2009 in the case of G v LB Southwark
and the subsequent statutory guidance issued by the department for
Children, Schools and Families, and Communities and Local Government
department in April 2010.
The protocol sets out Wirral Council’s responsibilities in the identification,
assessment and management of the needs of young people ages 16 to 17
who present as homeless. The aim of the protocol is to enable joint
working to ensure the best outcome for the homeless young person and to
ensure that homeless young people are identified and provided with
appropriate support.
192 young people have come through the Response gateway since

Page 17

9

August 2012 to March 2013. Of those 192 young people presenting to
Response 53 have required an initial assessment by social care to
determine duties under the Children Act 1989. The remainder have either
been supported to remain at home, given advice and guidance or have
been accommodated as part of a planned move.
For the same period last year August 2011 – March 2012 Response saw
139 young people who presented to the housing service showing a 38%
increase for the same period last year. The proportion of care leavers in
suitable accommodation at age 19 continues to improve. In 2012 94% of
care leavers at age 19 were deemed to be in suitable accommodation; an
improvement of 4.4% since to 2010.
The Pathway Team continue to work closely in Partnership with Response
to deliver against the protocol.
In
respect
of
individual
tenancies
for
Care
Leavers,
The Greenbank Partnership with Regenda continue to offer individual
tenancies for three care leavers. The young people are provided with
"floating support" by the Pathway Team.
To continue to develop provision for LLDD learners by:
•
•

Ensuring we have a LA transition protocol to clarify role and
responsibilities for parents/families/partners etc.
Identifying and resourcing appropriate routes and reducing the
numbers of young people in residential provision.

Continue the momentum and improvement in attainment at L2 and L3 for
those aged 19 and in particular those with disadvantage.
Ensure the Council secures sufficient suitable education and training
provision for all young people aged 16-18 (inclusive) in their area (under
sections 15ZA and 18A of the Education Act 1996 (as inserted by the
ASCL Act 2009)) and make available to young people age 19 and below
support that will encourage, enable or assist them to participate in
education or training (Section 68, Education and Skills Act 2008).
Deliver the 14-19 RPA action to ensure the Council is best placed to
deliver RPA in 2013 and 2015.
In response to Wirral’s Housing Strategy review ensure that current
housing related actions within CYPP are refreshed and further strengthen
future joint working.
Deliver the transport project, funded by the Department for Transport,
aimed at getting young people and adults into employment or training that
directly leads to employment. The project is also limited to residents of
East Wirral, or to assisting people to access employment opportunities in
East Wirral. The project is aimed at people over the age of 16, with the
exception of Travel Training which is 14+
Key challenges
ahead

Deliver Raising of the Participation Age for 16 and 17 year olds from
September 2013.
Commission a new targeted careers education, information and advice
service for delivery from 1st April 2014 – see appendix 1.

Page 18

10

The proposed transfer of the post 16 LLDD budget from the EFA to the
Council in 2012/13 and how we manage this.
Narrow the level 3 attainment gap for those young people previously free
school meal eligible at age 19.
Responding to the Governments:
•
•
•
•

Vision to eradicate Child Poverty by 2020.
Raise the Participation Age in 2013 for those young people aged
17 and by 2015 for those aged 18.
Responding to green paper on SEN.
Education reform, including the development of local University
Technical College’s, academies and free schools.

To increase the pace of NEET reduction particularly for identified
vulnerable groups - care leavers, LLDD, teenage parents and offenders.

Risks to outcome
delivery and
proposed actions

Areas requiring
further partnership
involvement

Deliver and embed new curriculum for young people aged 16 to 19,
including 16-19 Study Programmes and Traineeships from 1st August
2013.
Our response to the continued and emerging financial constraints will be
to:
• Seek opportunities to bid for grants where funding may be
available
• Work closely with a wider cross section of partners
• Further develop the 14-19 Education Quality traded service – for
example support for Careers Education, Information, Advice and
Guidance (Mersey Interactive (www.merseyinteractive.com))
• Look at what opportunities exist for shared service delivery with
other local Council’s. (See appendix 1.)
Delivery of Raising of the Participation Age for young people age 16 and
17 from September 2013. Education delivery partners to ensure the LA is
notified, on a monthly basis, of any young people aged 16 to 18 starting or
leaving education provision.
Work with wider partners to keep promoting local provision for learners
with learning difficulties and / or disabilities above ISP.

Equalities impact
assessment areas
for development
and progress
made

Engagement to secure better value for money in a landscape with ever
reducing funding.
Areas for Development
• Access arrangements for disabled young people and effective
arrangements for young parents across all learning providers.
• Further develop the skills resources and information for young
people accessible via Mersey Interactive.
• Raise awareness of Mersey Interactive; specifically targeting
parents and carers.
• Insufficient social accommodation for the under 25 demographic.
Progress Made
• Support in the redesigning the local learning offer for those with
LDD has delivered increased capacity in local provision
• Greater Merseyside SESS Service established.
• Housing panel operational and meets monthly.

Page 19

11

Areas for
promotion
/publicity /
communication /
engagement

Case Studies available from Looked after Children
Apprenticeship Programme if partners are interested.

and Wirral

FOCUS ON YOUNG PEOPLE NEET – ‘The current picture’
NEET Reduction:
The NEET figure in Wirral at April 2013 is 7.00% (or 817 young people (adjusted)), compared to
9.02% April 2012. 2012/13 performance against NI 117 has been the best ever for Wirral at 7.5%;
a reduction of 1.4% against 2011/12.
Focus on Vulnerable Groups
Outcomes for young people with LDD have improved, with Wirral showing a 20.1% increase in
EET year on year. The current EET figure is 80.7% compared to 60.6% in April 2012.
Outcomes for Care Leavers have also improved significantly, with Wirral showing a 7.3% increase
in care leavers moving in to employment, education and / or training. The current EET figure (April
2013) is 66.1% (or 146 young people) compared to 58.8% in April 2012.
Outcomes for Teenage Mothers have improved overall, with Wirral showing a 16.4% increase in
EET April 2013 against that of April 2012. The April 2013 EET figure is 38.5% (or 100 young
people) compared to 22.1% in April 2012.
Outcomes for young people who are Supervised by YOS have slightly improved, with Wirral
showing a 7.0% increase, April 2013. The April 2013 EET figure is 52.9% compared to 45.9% in
April 2012.
As at April 2013 the age group with the highest proportion of NEET young people is 18 at 10.4% or
398 young people. The cohorts of young people aged 16 and 17 have smaller proportions NEET at
3.8% and 6.9% respectively.
16-18 Learning Rates
16-18 Learning rates have increased in Wirral by 2.9%. In learning for 16 year olds increased
slightly by 3.6% and significantly by 4.1% for 17 year olds. The current 16-18 Learning rate is
84.3% compared to 81.4% in April 2012.

Summary
Across the Economic Well being area positive progress is being made in delivering outcomes for
our young people and meeting relevant National indicators. However, many challenges still remain
if we are to improve outcomes for our most vulnerable.
Recommendations:
That Wirral Children’s Trust note the report

Appendices:
Appendix 1: 2014/15 Targeted INFORMATION, ADVICE AND GUIDANCE SERVICE for

Page 20

12

young people not in employment, education and / or training aged 16 to 19
(and up to 25 if subject to a learning difficulty assessment)
Report Author:
Paul Smith
Manager 14-19 Strategy

Contact:
Phone 0151 346 6749
Email paulsmith@wirral.gov.uk

Page 21

13

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22

Agenda Item 6

Pan Cheshire/Merseyside
Child Sexual Exploitation
Multi-Agency Strategy
2013 / 2014

Page 23

The Safeguarding Children’s Boards of Cheshire (Cheshire East, Cheshire West and
Chester, Halton and Warrington) and Merseyside (Liverpool, Sefton, Knowsley, St Helens
and Wirral) have identified tackling the sexual exploitation of children as a key strategic
priority. Child sexual exploitation is child abuse and is completely unacceptable. The
Safeguarding Children’s Boards of Cheshire and Merseyside are committed to combating the
sexual exploitation of children via effective multi agency and partnership working.
Children who are subjected to sexual exploitation can have serious long term issues effecting
their physical and mental health and their overall well being. Although young people aged 16,
17 and 18 are able to consent to sexual activity, they can still be subjected to exploitation
and the exploitation can continue through to adulthood. The Safeguarding Children’s Boards
of Cheshire and Merseyside will therefore work closely with the Safeguarding Adult’s Boards
of Cheshire and Merseyside to ensure children and young people continue to receive support
through the transition phase from childhood to adulthood. Child sexual exploitation can also
effect the lives of the child or young persons family and carers and can lead to relationship
breakdown.
Sexual exploitation of children and young people under 18 will normally, but not exclusively,
involve an adult developing a relationship with the child or young person, groom or utilise
violence, coercion and intimidation to sexually exploit the child or young person.
All agencies have a reponsibility to help identifiy those children and young people at risk of
sexual exploitation; agencies also have responsibility both individually and collectively for
ensuring that the child or young person is protected from any further risk of harm.
All agencies have a responsibiilty to do what they can to prevent children and young people
becoming victims of child sexual exploitation. There are a number of ways this can be
achieved including ensuring that our communities, especially the children and young people
of Cheshire and Merseyside are aware of and understand the issues and risks involved in
child sexual exploitation.
The aim of this strategy is to prevent and safeguard all children from child sexual exploitation
and to prevent and safeguard individual children who are identified as at risk, or victims of
child sexual exploitation.
Safeguarding children and young people from sexual exploitation is everyone’s business.

Page 24

The purpose of the strategy is;

o To focus and co-ordinate multi agency resources in tackling child sexual exploitation.
o To ensure that children and young people and the wider community across Cheshire and
Merseyside, in particular with parents and carers, are aware of child sexual exploitation
and its effects.

o To enhance training for professionals.
o To ensure that young people and the community are made aware of the issues around
exploitation.

o To bring to justice the perpetrators of Child Sexual Exploitation and to ensure that young
people are properly safeguarded in the course of any criminal proceedings.

Our shared key strategic priorities are:

•

Self Assessment

•

Prevention

•

Safeguarding

•

Bringing Offenders to Justice

•

Governance

Page 25

Self Assessment
What are we going to do?

Each Local Safeguarding Children Board will undertake a self-assessment to review the local
response to child sexual exploitation. This review will involve;
Profiling
Assess the awareness and levels of understanding of professionals in relation to child sexual
exploitation.
Identify the prevalence and models of child sexual exploitation in the area
Service Provision
Map the availability of services for supporting sexually exploited children and young people,
ensuring agencies, when planning and commissioning services, focus on the needs of
children and young people who may be sexually exploited.

Prevention
What are we going to do?

There are three key features in preventing children and young people becoming subjected to
sexual exploitation, they are awareness, training and disruption.
Awareness
Awareness Raising with Children and Families
It is extremely important to ensure that we focus on raising children and young people’s
awareness of sexual exploitation. Schools and youth services are key agencies and have a
very important role to play in awareness raising and safeguarding children and young people
from sexual exploitation.
Any work on raising the awareness of children and young people must be supported by work
with parents and carers to supplement and reinforce that awareness.
Agencies who work with children need to;
•

Engage with children and young people to ensure they have an understanding of the
issues surrounding CSE,

Page 26

•

Develop activities which will dissuade children and young people becoming involved in
CSE

Awareness Raising in Communities / Community Engagement
Development of community intelligence is very important in preventing child sexual
exploitation.
Raising awareness of targeted groups / organisations, for example, taxi, hotel and leisure
organisations, is another key feature of prevention.
We will engage with our local communities and raise awareness of CSE and how it affects
individuals.
We will undertake proactive communication with the media
Training
A review is to be undertaken of all single and multi-agency training for professionals in terms
of content and targeted delivery.
The Local Safeguarding Children Board will ensure the provision of appropriate multi agency
training.
Single agency training needs to;
•

Ensure staff working with or in contact with children are able to identify those children and
young people at risk of CSE.

•

Ensure staff working with or in contact with children are able to identify activities
employed by offenders / abusers

•

Ensure staff know what interventions are appropriate and how to implement and or
signpost to appropriate agencies / services

Agencies must consider the provision of training for their agency that should be delivered in
line with the role of the professional and the level of detail they require.
Disruption
Disruption of perpetrator activity is an important tool in preventing child sexual exploitation.
All agencies need to work together to develop appropriate disruption tactics. Individual
agencies must consider how they can contribute to disrupting perpetrator behaviour.

Page 27

Safeguarding
What are we going to do?

Research and experience suggest that early intervention and a coordinated response by all
agencies is a key factor in making a difference and safeguarding children and young people
from sexual exploitation. The Local Safeguarding Children Board will;

• Develop and implement a Pan Cheshire/Merseyside Child Sexual Exploitation protocol,
which sets out the standards and provides guidance for multi agency working in tackling
child sexual exploitation.

• Ensure that responses to concerns about Child Sexual Exploitation are managed via a
multi-agency process and in accordance with this protocol.

• Ensure information is shared appropriately and especially with children’s services and the
Police.

• Expect individual agencies to develop their own policies and procedures which sets
standards relating to how that agency responds to / works towards tackling child sexual
exploitation. This will be monitored by the Local Safeguarding Children Board.

• Ensure agencies work together in recording and monitoring the prevalence of child sexual
exploitation

• Evaluate the effectiveness of service provision and identify and fill any gaps in service
provision in supporting children and their families

• Provide ongoing scrutiny and governance of policy, procedure and practice in service
delivery.

Bringing Offenders to Justice
What are we going to do?

Ensuring abusers are brought to justice is an effective and appropriate way to safeguard
children and young people. Offenders must be held to account for their behaviour.
A clear understanding needs to be developed and agreed about the balance between the
welfare of the child and the criminal justice considerations.
All agencies should;

Page 28

•

Ensure workers co-operate with Police investigations in relation to the detection and
prosecution of crime.

•

Ensure appropriate information is shared with the police, information and intelligence
sharing is a crucial part of the investigation process.

The police should;

• Ensure that victims of CSE are appropriately supported through the investigation and
court process.

• Ensure offenders are identified / targeted.
• Ensure children involved in sexual exploitation are treated as victims and the focus of the
investigation is on the abusers.

Governance
What are we going to do?

•

The Local Safeguarding Children Board will nominate a member of the board who will
act as the ‘lead professional’. Each agency of the Local Safeguarding Children Board
will also nominate a lead professional, who will act as the agencies single point of
contact for all matters relating to child sexual exploitation and will also be responsible
for providing advice and support to their agencies workers.

•

This protocol will form part of the Pan Cheshire/Merseyside Safeguarding Children
Procedures.

•

The relevant Local Safeguarding Children’s Board is responsible for co-ordinating the
activities of member agencies in relation to the effective implementation of this
protocol.

•

The Local Safeguarding Children Board lead professional for child sexual exploitation
will, on behalf of the Local safeguarding Children’s Board organise a quarterly multi
agency meeting. The purpose of this meeting will be;
•
•
•
•
•

•

To review performance in relation to the response of member agencies
To review the local implementation of the protocol
To identify areas of concern
To identify any patterns and trends in reports of child sexual exploitation
To develop local strategies / plans to address concerns / patterns / trends.

A Bi annual Strategic Multi Agency Pan Cheshire/Merseyside meeting will take place
with strategic representatives from the Local Safeguarding Children’s Boards, the

Page 29

Local Authorities and the Police. Other professionals may be co-opted on to the
group depending upon strategic needs. The purpose of this meeting will be;
•
•
•
•
•

To review the implementation of the protocol on a Pan Cheshire/Merseyside basis;
To consider the provision of services for children missing from both local authority
care and home;
To identify any patterns and trends in running / missing episodes and any cross
border issues
To consider the provision of training for those responsible for management of, and
services to, children missing from both local authority care and home;
To monitor on a Pan Cheshire/ Merseyside basis the provision of single and multiagency data collation and information sharing processes.

•

The meeting will be arranged and chaired by the police.

•

The representatives from the relevant Local Safeguarding Children’s Boards will be
responsible for ensuring updating their respective Board with any Pan
Cheshire/Merseyside issues or areas for concern.

Page 30

Agenda Item 7

Wirral Link Forum
Report on progress for the year ended 31st March 2013
Introduction
Link Forum is a network of voluntary, community and faith sector organisations that work
with children, young people and families in Wirral, offering them a voice through
representation on the Children’s Trust Board and its subgroups. The network was set up in
2005 because existing infrastructure organisations were unable to provide the
services/support/information needed for those voluntary organisations that were working
with children, young people and families.
Link Forum have a history of working closely with the Children & Young People’s
Department and we developed a programme of common induction training for the sector’s
children’s workforce, which was adopted by the Children’s Trust for delivery to the whole
children’s workforce on Wirral.
Wirral CYPD funded a 2-day post for a Link Forum paid worker, hosted by one of the
member organisations, for several years until, in 2010, CYPD secured funds from CWDC to
fund a 4-day post for 12 months. This enabled the Link Forum Co-ordinator to take on some
workforce development responsibilities, including co-ordination of the Common Induction
Programme.
Since November 2011, Children and Young People's Department have funded the 4-day
post and a Service Level Agreement was put in place for the period 1st April 2012 to 31st
March 2013. This report covers that period, using the purposes and agreed targets from the
SLA as headings (see appendix 1).
Purpose
· To support the development of Wirral Link Forum as a vehicle for multi-agency
working within the governance structures of the Children’s Trust
· To develop mechanisms for disseminating information and good practice across the
Voluntary Community and Faith and statutory sectors, contributing to the Health
and Well-Being Board, Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and any other
strategies/plans for children and young people

Page 31

· Report back to CYPD any concerns from the Voluntary, Community and faith sector,
relating to policy development and implementation raised by or identified through
dialogue with Link Forum members.
· Represent the voluntary, community and faith sector at the Children’s Trust Board
and other relevant meetings, at the discretion of Wirral Link Forum Co-chairs
Target - Development of a clear two-way communication strategy to disseminate
information to Wirral Link Forum members, ensure views of the Third Sector are
represented to the Children’s Trust and ensure communication from the Children’s Trust
to the Sector
Link Forum has representation on all Children’s Trust outcome/sub-groups and
representatives are encouraged to take a full and active role, with my support.
Representatives’ reports are made available on our website and discussed at our monthly
meetings, allowing representatives to voice any concerns from members.
Representing the voluntary, community and faith sector is made difficult by the size and
diversity of the sector. With this in mind, Link Forum set up a sub-group to devise a way to
collate information on the sector, to evidence our worth, and better inform our
representatives. Under the theme of Recognising Value, we will be conducting a short
online survey to find out how our members are working to improve outcomes for children
and young people in Wirral. Representatives will be able to take data and case studies to
Children Trust subgroups, which will give a truer picture within annual reports and action
plans. The information gathering will be on-going and information will also be available on
our website.
The Link Forum website, www.wirrallinkforum.org.uk , continues to be developed as a realtime communication tool and displays news and events from members and statutory
partners, along with local and national news and initiatives. Minutes and reports from Link
Forum meetings and other events are also available on the site, so that organisations that
are unable to send a representative to our monthly meetings can stay in touch.
A weekly eBulletin, alerting recipients to the latest content on the website and any timecritical information was sent to over 100 member organisations (102, March 2013 – see
fig.1 below) and to interested statutory partners within the Children and Young People's
Department and NHS Wirral.

2

Page 32

FAITH, 21

COMMUNITY, 9
VOLUNTARY, 72

Fig.1 breakdown of voluntary, community and faith sector organisations receiving the eBulletin in 2012-13

Targets - Attend quarterly Liaison meeting with Children and Young People's Department;
Attend Children’s Trust meetings
I attended all 4 liaison meetings with Children and Young People's Department and 6
Children’s Trust Board meetings.
I also represented Link Forum on the Lifelong and Family Learning Steering Group,
Children’s Social Care Equality and Diversity Reference Group and Children and Young
People North West Network, which allows me to keep up to date with developments across
the North West and nationally.
Target - Attend monthly Link Forum meetings
11 Link Forum meetings were held this year (monthly, excluding August) and were attended
by 65 unique individuals from 32 different organisations working with children, young
people and families in Wirral’s voluntary, community and faith sector. Statutory partners
are invited to Link Forum meetings on an ad-hoc basis to give and receive updates to/from
Link Forum. Guest speakers during the period of this report included Elizabeth Hartley, IFIP
Co-ordinator and David Robbins, as CAF Quality Assurance Manager and LSCB Manager.
We also regularly invite presentations from member organisations, enabling organisations
to learn more about each other. Future plans include a Safeguarding best practice/Section
11 Audit session and a speed networking event.
Purpose
· To increase the role and contribution the voluntary, community and faith sector
have in service planning, commissioning, policy development and consultation
· Provide advice and support to CYPD during the commissioning cycle
3

Page 33

Target - Meet monthly with Principal Manager Commissioning
I have been based in the Principal Manager Commissioning’s office in Hamilton Building on
Tuesday afternoons most weeks. This has allowed me to talk through any issues as they
have arisen and gives other CYPD staff the opportunity to contact me face to face.
Targets - Attend commissioning planning meetings; Membership of commissioning panels
I was involved in Planning Meetings for the Children’s Services Commissioning 2013-14 and
assessed tender documents, and sat on a Commissioning Panel, along with another Link
Forum member.
I was also part of the group responding to the recent Big Lottery Fulfilling Lives Expression
of Interest exercise.
Target - Production of evaluation reports following all Children and Young People's
Department commissioning programmes and completion of programme contract
extension arrangements
I submitted a report on feedback from vcfs organisations on the Early Intervention Grant
Process to CYPD in August 2011 and it helped inform the process for the Children’s Services
Commissioning 2013-14. A report on this round of commissioning has been prepared.
Purpose
To support the voluntary and community sector in implementing Wirral Local
Safeguarding Children Board’s procedures and national safeguarding guidance
The monthly Link Forum meetings enable us to share good practice and this year we
incorporated a CAF/TAC training session, facilitated by an Area Team Leader, and a Section
11 Audit session, where members supported each other to complete their Audits. The Local
Safeguarding Children Board Manager is a regular guest at meetings, keeping us up to date
on our responsibilities.
Details of Local Safeguarding Children Board training courses have been regularly cascaded
via the website and eBulletins, and members have been encouraged to undertake as much
training as capacity allows. We have a representative on the Safeguarding Training subcommittee who is able to take our feedback to the committee.
I arranged 8 free “introduction to safeguarding children and young people” training
sessions, attended by 234 staff and volunteers from 40 VCFS organisations, plus 7 foster
carers, 2 police officers and a swimming instructor (see fig.2 below). The Local Safeguarding
4

Page 34

Children Board Training Officer facilitated the sessions and member organisations donated
the use of their premises. There is a commitment to continue delivering these sessions,
where capacity allows as smaller organisations, particularly faith groups, struggle to provide
the training themselves.

30
24

25

19

20

17

16

15

11
8

10
5

4 5

3 3
1

10 9

9 10

10

10

6

5
2

17

4

4

3
1

2 1 1

1 2

1

2 2 1

2

2 3

4 3 4
2

Action for Children
Adullam Homes
Age UK
Allendale Youth Works
Amy and Friends
Arena Options
Barnardo's
Barnstondale Centre
Catch 22
Catholic Children's Society
Charlotte's Brightside
Christ the King
Claire House
Crossroads Care
Ferries Family Groups
Forum Housing Association
Greasby Community Association
Holy Apostles & Martyrs Catholic Church
Home-Start Wirral
HYPE/HQ Coaching
Involve Northwest
Lantern Project
Link Youth UK
Longcroft Christian Trust
Moreton Baptist Church
My Voice
Oasis Church
Pathways
Skills for Life Coach Services
Stick n Step
Summerhill Day Nursery
VCA Wirral
Wired
Wirral DARA/YFC
Wirral Family Forum
Wirral Multicultural Organisation
Wirral Play Council
Wirral Sports Development Unit
Women's Enterprising Breakthrough
Zero Centre
Other (non vcf)

0

Fig.2 safeguarding session attendees by organisation

Purpose
· To support the implementation and further development of the Common Induction
Programme across the Wirral Children’s Workforce
Over the last 18 months, recruitment freezes and redundancies within Wirral’s children’s
workforce have prevented delivery of any Common Induction Programme modules.
However, I took the opportunity to update and redesign the Programme and it now
combines elements of eLearning with tutor-led sessions. This should allow for greater
engagement as participants will spend less time away from the workplace. I will continue to
ensure the Programme is up to date and will produce an evaluation report after each
delivery.
Target - Membership of Children’s Workforce Development Strategy Group
I take an active role in the Children’s Workforce Development Strategy Group and
successfully completed tasks assigned to me in the Action Plan within agreed timescales.
Link Forum members were encouraged to contribute to the recent Training Needs Analysis
5

Page 35

carried out by the Strategy Group and the Chair’s report to the Children’s Trust highlighted
the Sector’s engagement.
Target - Delivery of four briefings for Link Forum on children’s workforce issues
I included reports on workforce development issues within my monthly report to Link
Forum members, which was discussed at the monthly meeting and made available on our
website. I have used the weekly eBulletin to circulate local and national children’s
workforce news and initiatives.
Outstanding Targets
· Establishment of agreed performance measures to underpin impact of Link Forum Coordinator’s work plan
· Provision of quarterly report to Link Forum Liaison meeting reporting progress against
performance measures
As the Service Level Agreement wasn’t formalised until the last quarter of the year, we
were unable to agree performance measures.
Additional progress
· At the request of the Children’s Trust, I developed a module to raise awareness of
Child Poverty. This eLearning module is based on one delivered to Home-Start
volunteers from CWDC materials and will be included as a tutor-led session within
the revised Common Induction Programme. Staff and volunteers who work with
children and young people or adults in Wirral will be expected to undertake the
eLearning module.
· I have visited several smaller organisations to offer support on an individual basis and
offer telephone and email support to organisations, as necessary.
· I represented the Sector on the Healthy Child Programme Review Group. This was an
intensive task and finish group that looked at every aspect of the Programme with a
view to informing future health commissioning.
Lynn Loughran
Link Forum Co-ordinator
Tel: 07531 909 999
1st May 2013

e-mail: lynn.loughran@wirrallinkforum.org.uk

6

Page 36

Appendix 1

SCH1

SERVICE SPECIFICATION
Service:
The Service Provided
Employment of the Link Forum Co-ordinator to act as the conduit between Wirral
Link Forum and Wirral Council’s Children and Young People’s Department. The
service will be reviewed every six months against the requirements of the service
specification.
The purpose of the Service Provision is to:
1. To support the implementation and further development of the Common
Induction Programme across the Wirral Children’s Workforce
2. To support the development of Wirral Link Forum as a vehicle for multiagency working within the governance structures of the Children’s Trust
3. To increase the role and contribution the voluntary, community and faith
sector have in service planning, commissioning, policy development and
consultation
4. To develop mechanisms for disseminating information and good practice
across the Voluntary Community and Faith and statutory sectors,
contributing to the Health and Well-Being Board, Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment and any other strategies/plans for children and young people
5. To support the voluntary and community sector in implementing Wirral
Local Safeguarding Children Board’s procedures and national
safeguarding guidance
6. Provide advice and support to CYPD during the commissioning cycle
7. Report back to CYPD any concerns from the Voluntary, Community and
faith sector, any concerns relating to policy development and
implementation raised by or identified through dialogue with Link Forum
members.
8. Represent the voluntary, community and faith sector at the Children’s
Trust Board and other relevant meetings, at the discretion of Wirral Link
Forum Co-chairs
The service will be provided by:
The Link Forum Co-ordinator, employed by Wirral Link Forum and hosted for by
Forum Housing Association

Sch 1.2
Sch 1.2.1

Service Level Outputs
Unless otherwise agreed as a variation under this Agreement then the Link
Forum Co-ordinator agrees to achieve the following targets:
·
·
·
·
·

Attend monthly Link Forum meetings
Attend quarterly Liaison meetings with CYPD
Attend Children’s Trust meetings
Meet monthly with Principal Manager Commissioning.
Attend commissioning planning meetings

Page 37

Appendix 1

·
·
·
·
·

·
·

Membership of commissioning panels
Production of evaluation reports following all CYPD commissioning
programmes and completion of programme contract extension arrangements
Membership of Children’s Workforce Development Strategy Group
Delivery of four briefings for Link Forum on Children’s Workforce issues
Development of a clear two-way communication strategy to disseminate
information to Wirral Link Forum members, ensure views of the third sector
are represented to the Children’s Trust and ensure communication from the
Children’s Trust to the sector
Establishment of agreed performance measures to underpin impact of Link
Forum Co-ordinator’s work plan
Provision of quarterly report to Link Forum Liaison meeting reporting progress
against performance measures

Sch 1.3

Specific Outcomes of the Service:

Sch 1.3.1

The Link Forum Co-ordinator will work with Staff in CYPD and help to meet the
following outcomes:
Increased involvement by Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector providers in
the planning, policy development, commissioning and delivery of services for
children, young people and families.

Page 38

Agenda Item 9
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 16TH July 2013
Review of delivery of the Healthy Child Programme (5-19 year olds)

1.0 Background
Giving every child the best start in life is important in reducing inequalities through the rest of their life.
This means supporting the child and family to have early positive health experiences but also in their
journey through the educational system. Investing in early years is crucial to breaking the cycle of
inequalities and reducing the gap between the least and most advantaged.
An effective healthy child programme is one way of ensuring that children and their families get the
right support at the right time. The responsibility for the commissioning of the healthy child
programme for 5-19 year olds now lies with the Council, following the transfer of the public health
function.
The purpose of this report is to highlight to the Children’s Trust Board current provision for the
delivery of the Healthy Child programme for 5-19 year olds in Wirral and present a rationale to
develop a specification for a local integrated service model. The report provides an overview of
proposed areas to be included in the new model, finer details of these will be specified following
extensive consultation with key stakeholders, including young people and their families.

2.0 Local information from the JSNA
We have nearly 55,000 children and young people living on Wirral (n=54,700, 2011 ONS estimate)
and in 2011 we had 3,802 births. Overall, most of these children and young people will fulfil their
aspirations and be healthy, safe and well educated; have easy access to recreation, sport and
leisure; be able to make a positive contribution to our society; and be well prepared for their working
lives. Most children and young people will live in a decent home and live in a pleasant environment;
near a park or open space, with opportunities to explore and have fun.
However, whilst overall Wirral is a positive place for children and young people to grow up, some do
not fulfil their potential. There are great disparities in Wirral, not least in wealth. Some areas, mostly in
the west of the peninsula, are very affluent; whilst on the east of the peninsula there are high levels of
poverty and deprivation which has an impact upon children’s lives and development. The challenge is
to eliminate disparities in outcomes and ensure that all young people have the best possible start in
life.
2.1 Key statistics:
•
The rate of child poverty in Wirral was 24.9% in 2009. This is 17,615 children. This is
up 0.7% from 24.2% in 2008, equating to an increase of 615 children.
•

Wirral has a higher rate of emergency admissions for unintentional and deliberate
injuries in those aged 0-17, compared to the regional and national average.

•

Alcohol is a significant problem for children and young people in Wirral. This can cause
a wide range of associated problems including injuries and accidents, risk taking
behaviour, cognitive problems and long term risks to health.

•

Although Wirral has achieved a reduction in the number of children who are obese in
Reception and Year 6 in recent years, the number of overweight children was still
higher locally compared to the North West and England in 2010-11.

•

Data from 2005-06 showed that dental decay amongst Wirral five year olds was a
considerable problem in some of the more deprived areas of Wirral.

Page 39

1

•

In Wirral, child behaviour, health issues, parenting and school behaviour were the
predominant reasons for multi-agency early intervention using the Common
Assessment Framework (CAF) during 2011-12.

•

In 2012, Wirral had a higher proportion of children assessed as being in need (4%)
than the national average (3.6%). Family dysfunction (38.4%) followed by abuse or
neglect (34.4%) was the highest recorded category of need at initial assessment.

•

Wirral’s teenage conception rate in 2010 (47.3 per 1,000) was higher than both the
North West average (40.7 per 1,000) and England (35.4 per 1,000). Rates for 2011 are
currently only available for Wirral (England and the North-West not yet available) and
show a marked decrease in Wirral, to 36.9 per 1,000

2.2 The Healthy Child Programme for 5 to 19 year olds
The National Healthy Child Programme for 5 to 19 year olds sets out the recommended framework of
universal and progressive services for children and young people to promote optimal health and
wellbeing – the diagram in an appendix 1 illustrates how the programme is designed to be delivered.
During 2011/12, The Being Healthy sub-group undertook a review of the Healthy Child Programme.
The purpose of the review was to ensure improved outcomes and a reduction in health inequalities
for Wirral children and young people aged 5 -19 years. The review group was asked to consider the
issues highlighted in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and review the performance of all
services that contribute to the health of children within the universal and progressive framework of the
Healthy Child Programme. Priority areas in the programme include: emotional health and wellbeing;
promoting healthy weight; teenage pregnancy, sexual health and drugs, alcohol and tobacco. Key
providers were interviewed and young people were consulted as part of this process.
The review identified the need to develop a specification for the School Nursing Service and
streamline the commissioning of services for children and young people to drive down transactional
costs. The development of the specification for the school nursing service commenced in 2012/13
and takes into account the conclusions of the national review of school nursing, including the
recommendation to offer a continuum of interventions along the same framework as that adopted for
health visiting:
§

Your Community – range of services for children, young people and families

§

Universal Services – to ensure healthy start for every child

§

Universal Plus – swift response from school nurse when specific expert help needed

§

Universal Partnership Plus – ongoing support from school nurse working with range of
local services to deal with more complex issues

The changes to the service will enable delivery beyond the traditional term time/school hours
service/school based service providing support for children and their families within their
communities.

3.0 Current commissioned services
There are a range of services currently commissioned by Public Health that contribute to the delivery
of the Healthy Child Programme which are proposed to be included in the review, those included
below are examples:
Table 1: description of services that contribute to the Healthy Child Programme
Service
School nurse service

Description and comment
The school nurse service has a long-standing
relationship of trust in Wirral schools with both

Page 40

2

young people and professionals. They provide
health information and advice, both on a one-toone level and deliver lessons around specific
health issues. They also deliver an immunisation
programme.
Lifestyle and
programme

weight

Health Services in Schools

management This service at present is predominantly focused
on treating obese and overweight children and
their families. It is intended to shift the focus to
increase the emphasis to preventing children and
young people developing weight problems.
The Health Services in Schools programme is
currently available in all secondary schools in
Wirral with the exception of one and is undergoing
evaluation. The aim of Health Services in Schools
is to increase young people’s knowledge and
access to advice and support with regards to a
wide-range of issues. It includes the following
components: sexual health, mental health,
counselling and smoking cessation and there are
a number of providers that currently deliver
services.
The programme has been positively received by
both the schools and the young people and is
considered to have been a contributory factor in
the recent reduction in teenage pregnancy rates.

National Child Measurement Programme This is currently delivered by the School Nurse
(NCMP)
Service in addition to their main contract. The
service weighs and measure children at 4-5 years
This
is
a
nationally
mandated (reception) and 10-11 years (Year 6) and provides
commissioned service
an enhanced service to support families following
identification of overweight/obesity.

4.0 Rationale for the review
The need to develop an integrated approach between health and children’s services and schools to
ensure children get the best start in life has been made locally and nationally via policy and need
assessments.
The rationale for this review is to enable an integrated specification to be developed for 5-19 year
olds which would incorporate appropriate young peoples services within one specification. This could
include, for example, the mandatory National Child Measurement Programme, School Nurse Service,
Children’s Lifestyle and Weight Management Services, the health promotion work in schools and
young people’s settings, and the Health Services in Schools project. This would enable a more
integrated and seamless service to be developed, preventing potential duplication and silo working.
Responsibility for the Health Visiting Service will be transferred to the Council from April 2015; this
will be taken into account during the review process further enabling a seamless service to be
developed for children, young people and their families.

5.0 Proposed timetable
It is proposed to review the Healthy Child Programme for 5-19 year olds with a view to developing an
integrated specification over the next 5 months. Comprehensive stakeholder consultation is planned

Page 41

3

for September and October with key stakeholders including children, young people and parents;
schools; current local providers/relevant organisations, for example Children & Young People’s
Department; Wirral University Teaching Hospital, Wirral Community Trust and Wirral Clinical
Commissioning Groups. The consultation will be undertaken using a variety of methods, including online surveys, face to face interviews and focus groups and large scale co-production events.

6.0 Recommendations
The Children’s Trust Board is asked to:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Note and support the review.
To identify key stakeholders to be involved in the process.
To comment on the consultation process.
To receive regular feedback on the review.

Report Author:
Julie Webster
Head of Public Health

Contact:
Juliewebster@wirral.gov.uk
0151 666 5142

Page 42

4

Appendix 1

Page 43

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44

Agenda Item 10
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 16th July 2013
HELP Survey 2013 – Summary Results
1.0 Background
The HELP survey is an annual survey of children and young people Wirral it is ran on behalf
of the Children’s Trust and has been a continuation from the nation TellUs survey they
ceased in 2010. The survey is conducted using an online questionnaire and is carried out
during school time. This year three versions of the survey have been conducted for Primary
(Year6), Secondary (Year 8 and 10) and new this year a Post 16 questionnaire.
Results from this survey will be sued across the Children’s Trust to inform service planning
for children and young people in Wirral, including the Children and Young People’s Plan.
The response rate was at its highest in 2012, and is summaries in the table below. There has
been a reduction in primary responses of 23% in 2013 and similarly in secondary by 37%.

Year
2012
2013

Primary
1606
1243

Secondary
2186
1367

Post 16
772

2.0 Demographics
For Primary schools the gender split is approximately 50% which is representative of
schools, similarly the rate of Free School Meal entitlement (FMS) is 23.5% which is higher
than that reported in the May 2013 School Census of 18.7%.
For secondary schools however the gender split is heavily weighted towards girls with 78.4%
of respondents being female, this is attributed to the numbers of girl’s schools who
completed the survey. The FSM entitlement was 11.6% which is low compared to the Wirral
average. These respondent characteristics need to be considered when analysing the
results.
3.0 Findings
The analysis has been carried out within the three outcome groups, Being Healthy, Staying
Safe and Achieving and Economic Wellbeing. The results have been closely linked to the
Children and Young People’s Plan 2013/16.
4.0 Summary

HELP survey
Obesity and Healthy Lifestyle

Children and Young People’s Plan

Children are most active in the Primary
School with 62.3% of respondents walking
to school, for those who don’t walk the
majority 44.6% come to school by car.
In secondary school 39.0% of respondents
walk to school with 35.8% using the bus
and 35.3% being driven to school.
When it comes to eating 5 or more portions
of fruit and vegetables each day 21.9% of
primary and 18.0% of secondary pupils

• Breastfeeding will be embedded in the
nursery, primary and secondary school
curriculum through the use of resources that
show women breastfeeding instead of
feeding formula milk so that children grow up
experiencing breastfeeding as the norm.
• Midwifery and health visiting services to
identify women who are obese at their 12
week ante natal assessment.
• Examine local data to determine current
levels of maternal obesity in Wirral and

Page 45

said they had eaten five or more portions of
fruit and vegetables the previous day to the
survey. This is an increase from last year
where the numbers were 20.8% and 15.2%
respectively.

identify appropriate solutions to tackle these.
• Develop an early year’s program to include
focus on healthy eating and being active.
• Develop a Wirral obesity strategy within the
wider Health and Wellbeing Strategy with an
emphasis on prevention and physical activity.
• Explore the potential to deliver healthy
cookery classes in schools.

Mental Health
When asked if they were generally happy
with life, 85.8% of primary pupils said they
were happy all or most of the time, by
secondary this fell to 79.2%. However
when asked about friendships, 97% of
primary and 96.4% of secondary pupils
said that had at least one or more good
friend.
When asked if they liked the way they look
64.5% of primary (53.5% girls, 70.7 %
boys) said they like the way they look
either all or most of the time. By the time
they reached secondary age 44.4% (38.3%
girls, 67.8% boys) agreed that they were
happy either some or all of the time. It is
wise to note that for secondary the ratio of
girls to boy is 17:3.

• An emotional health, psychological wellbeing
and mental health pathway will be
established to ensure schools have direct
access to informal generic advice from
CAMHS.
• Pilot the proposed new ‘health and
happiness’ indicator (once confirmed) with
low level school based emotional health and
wellbeing intervention service as well as
other Health Services in Schools (HSIS)
providers.

Smoking, Alcohol and Drugs
When it comes to smoking the recent
decline seen in the national smoking levels
and the changing perceptions of smoking
as “uncool” seems to be filtering down to
young people, with and increase in both
Primary and Secondary pupils who claim
they have never smoked, not even a puff or
two. For Primary on 2012 this was 91.4%
and in 2013 93.8%. For secondary it was
71.1% in 2012 and 80.1% for 2013.
In terms of the consumption of alcohol
percentage of primary children who say
they have had an alcoholic drink, a whole
drink and not just a sip remains low from
16.3% in 2012 to 16.0% in 2013. There is a
reduction in secondary for the same
question, in 2012 53.4% of young people
claimed to have had an alcoholic drink

• A Schools Substance Misuse Advisor will be
recruited to support the promotion, adoption
and implementation of the following:
• Schools Substance Misuse guidance and
policy documents;
• Alcohol Alright brief intervention toolkit;
• Provision of interventions for young people
admitted to the Accident and Emergency
department, addressing the presenting
issues and reducing the likelihood of future
presentations;
• Involvement of the young person’s parents or
carers;
• Ensure that specialist substance misuse
agencies engage with the IFIP to provide
education, treatment and other support for
families where parents or children are

Page 46

whilst in 2013 this has reduced to 46.0%.

misusing substances;

When asked about taking drugs, in 2013,
92.7% of young people say they have
never taken drugs, this is an increase since
2012 when 88.8% of young people claimed
the same thing. Caution should be taken
here as the 2013 cohort is heavily weighted
towards young women.
The table below splits this information out
by gender across the two surveys.
2012

2013

Boys

83.9%

90.7%

Girls

91.7%

93.3%

• Develop a range of bespoke programmes of
activities and interventions to target
vulnerable young women misusing alcohol;
• Deliver specialist treatment/interventions via
CAMHS, Response and Youth Offending
Services to reduce substance misuse,
improve school attendance and improve
family relationships.

Table 1: % Never tried drugs
Feeling Safe
Keeping children safe is the responsibility
of everyone, from ensuring that effective
policing is in place within a community to
teaching children how they can keep
themselves safe. When asked if they felt
safe in the where they lived, 84.6% of
primary respondents and 86.8% of
secondary respondents said that they felt
very or quite safe.

Ensure promotional programmers are in place
and effectively reviewed for:
• Road safety
• Anti bullying
• Teenage Pregnancy
• Sexual Health
• E Safety

When asked about bullying in schools
91.7% of the primary respondents noted
that the school inform them about bullying
in lessons, assemblies or have an agency
work with them to help them spot and
reduce bullying, for secondary schools this
was 80.4% of respondents. In asked how
well does your school deal with bullying for
primary school 73.2% of children stated
very well or quite well, for secondary this
was 59.6%. These were increases from
previous years.
School and Lessons
In 2013, 87.2% of primary school children
noted that most their teachers make their
lessons fun and interesting. This is an
increase from last year in which 71.2% of
children noted this.

• Schools below floor standards, schools
causing concern and/or schools in an
OFSTED category will be supported to make
good or better progress; those in Schools
Causing Concern or an OFSTED category
should be removed from that category in the
shortest possible time.

Page 47

In terms of disruptions in class 46.4% of
children claim that their lessons are
disturbed by other children in 2012, in 2013
this is still a similar figure at 45.7%.
A large proportion of children in primary felt
that the teachers gave them feedback on
how they were doing at school, 87.2% in
2013 compared to 81.1% the previous
year.
In
secondary
schools
48.1%
of
respondents noted that their lessons are
disrupted by other pupils, in the previous
year 2012, it was 54.0%.
In secondary schools 68.0% reported
getting feedback on how there are doing
with their school work compared to 59.6%
in 2012.
Advice about the future and Aspiration
When is comes to aspiration in primary
school the difference between the FSM
and the non-FSM groups are wide and this
gets wider as these groups progress to
secondary schools. The tables below
examine the question “Do you think you will
go on to University/Higher Education?”
FSM
Non FSM
Yes
49.5%
60.3%
No
16.7%
9.9%
Don’t Know 33.8%
29.9%
Table 2: Primary Responses "Do you
think you will go on to University/Higher
Education?"
FSM
Non FSM
Yes
56.4%
72.9%
No
11.4%
6.3%
Don’t Know 32.1%
20.8%
Table 3: Secondary Reponses "Do you
think you will go on to University/Higher
Education?"

• Persistent Absence will be reduced and
attendance in primary schools improved.
• Expansion of the project targeting primary
schools with the largest attainment gaps.
• The Raising Attainment for Disadvantaged
Youngsters (RADY) project for secondary
schools will continue to develop and
outcomes and learning will be transferred to
all secondary and primary schools.
• Narrowing the post 16 education attainment
gap projects will continue with schools and
further education providers; specifically at
level 3.

• Young people will have access to, and be
equipped to take advantage of, a range of
training, employment or entrepreneurship
opportunities.
• To provide young people with the best
possible preparation for work we will maintain
and further develop strong partnerships
which connect the educational sector,
training providers and the business sector.
• A targeted careers information, advice and
guidance service for vulnerable young people
aged 16-18 (up to the age of 24 if subject to
a learning difficulty assessment) will be
delivered.
• A web based careers information and advice
interactive tool – Mersey Interactive
(www.merseyinteractive.com) will be
provided for use by all Wirral young people,
parents, carers and teaching professionals.
• Contribute to the Liverpool City Region
Apprenticeship ‘Hub’ and ensure Wirral
supports the headline regional delivery target
of 10,000 apprenticeships starts in 2013-14.

5.0 Conclusion
The richness of the information in this survey cannot be done justice is a short summary
report. However what is evident from looking at these key themes is that the Children and

Page 48

Young People’s Plan for 2013-2016 will address the issues over the life of the plan. To add
value to the work that is being done with and for children and young people of the borough
this survey should be continued. This year on year comparison of data will enable the
Children’s Trust to evidence impact of the CYPP and also continue to inform planning as the
needs of the children and young people in the borough change.
6.0 Recommendation
It is recommended that the Children’s Trust Board note the report and agree to running the
HELP survey 2014 and identify further resources to ensure a high response rate and
statistical validation.

Report Author:

Tracy Little
Children’s Trust, Data Management and Performance Manager

Contact:

0151 666 4412
tracylittle@wirral.gov.uk

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50

